Public Document Pack
AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 18 APRIL 2019
A MEETING of the AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE will be held in the COUNCIL
CHAMBER, COUNCIL HEADQUARTERS, NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS on THURSDAY, 18
APRIL 2019 at 10.00 am
J. J. WILKINSON,
Clerk to the Council,
10 April 2019

BUSINESS
1.

Apologies for Absence.

2.

Order of Business.

3.

Declarations of Interest.
SCRUTINY BUSINESS

4.

The Introduction of Speed Bumps in Langlee Drive, Galashiels
(a)

Petition Procedure

60 mins

(Pages 3 - 6)

(Copy attached).
(b)

Petition

(Pages 7 18)

(Copy attached).
(c)

Presentation by Service Director Assets &
Infrastructure

(Pages 19 32)

(Copy attached).
5.

Health and Social Care Integration Update

15 mins

Verbal update by the Chief Officer, Health & Social Care Integration.
6.

Delivery of the Council's IT Strategy and Plan within Scottish Borders
Council
Presentation by the Chief Financial Officer.

7.

Any Other Scrutiny Items Previously Circulated.

8.

Any Other Scrutiny Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent.

20 mins

AUDIT & SCRUTINY BUSINESS
9.

Minute. (Pages 33 - 40)

5 mins

Minute of Meeting of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee held on 11 March
2019 to be approved and signed by the Chairman. (Copy attached).
10.

Action Tracker (Pages 41 - 42)

5 mins

To note progress made on the Action Tracker. (Copy attached)
11.

Any Other Items Previously Circulated.

12.

Any Other Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent.

NOTES
1.
Timings given above are only indicative and not intended to inhibit Members’
discussions.
2.

Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any
item of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the
Minute of the meeting.

Membership of Committee:- Councillors S. Bell (Chairman), H. Anderson, K. Chapman,
J. A. Fullarton, S. Hamilton (Vice-Chairman), N. Richards, H. Scott, E. Thornton-Nicol, S. Scott,
M Middlemiss and H. Barnett
Please direct any enquiries to Eileen Graham 01835 826585
Email: eegraham@scotborders.gov.uk

Agenda Item 4a

Scottish Borders Council
Audit & Scrutiny Committee Petitions Procedure
Part of the remit of the Audit & Scrutiny Committee is to consider petitions
submitted to the Council in accordance with the Council’s approved petitions
procedure, outlined below, and to determine the appropriate action to be taken
within the terms of the procedure.
Petitions
1.

Petitions should raise issues which relate to matters within the
responsibility of Scottish Borders Council or the general well-being of the
residents of the Scottish Borders. Petitioners should be able to
demonstrate that there is a public interest in the issue that they are
raising.

2.

A petition should be on a standard form, titled and should include a clear
statement (no more than 250 words) which covers the main subject. Any
further information, for example, about measures already taken or
approaches made to other bodies, should be included but limited to no
more than 4 sides of A4 paper.

3.

Petitions should be accompanied by at least 10 signatures in total, from
persons aged 16 and over, resident in the Scottish Borders. The
signatures must be from a minimum of 3 separate addresses. The
principal petitioner should be on the Register of Electors for the Scottish
Borders Council area.

4.

Petitions from local businesses shall be accepted where there is support
from at least 5 businesses on the Valuation Roll for Scottish Borders
Council.

5.

Elected Members may not be a signatory on a petition and no petition will
be accepted from a political party.

6.

Where there are already regulatory procedures in place or the matter
relates to individuals, then it would not be appropriate to accept such
petitions, therefore petitions shall not be accepted:
(i)

about planning, licensing, or other matters where there are already
regulatory procedures in place;

(ii) about personal or business issues;
(iii) about commercially sensitive or confidential material;

Page 3

1

(iv) about individual Councillors, members of Council staff, or other
individuals who may easily be identified;
(v) about employees’ terms and conditions of employment;
(vi) about information which is protected by an interdict or court order:
(vii) about an allegation that someone has broken the law;
(viii) which contain language which is defamatory, offensive, provocative or
otherwise inappropriate;
(ix) which relate to a complaint or grievance (which should be handled
through the Council’s complaints procedure);
(x) which relate to a decision made by the Council or a committee during
the preceding six months; and
(xi) which are identical or similar to other petitions made within the
preceding twelve months.
7.

The Clerk to the Council, or her representative, shall ensure petitions keep
to procedures and are admissible. All valid petitions, with accompanying
information if any, shall be passed to the next scheduled meeting of the
Audit & Scrutiny Committee. Petitions which are the same, or
substantially similar, shall be considered together.

8.

A summary report shall be prepared for the Committee by the Clerk to the
Council about any petitions received during the period that are considered
inadmissible for any of the reasons listed in paragraph 6 above. The
Committee will make the final decision as to whether these are valid.

Meetings of the Audit & Scrutiny Committee
9.

When hearing a petition the relevant Director(s), Executive Member(s) and
Community Planning Partner representative(s) shall be invited to attend
the meeting to provide further information, as appropriate.

10.

The principal petitioner should indicate on the form whether or not he/she,
or a named deputy, wish to have the opportunity to make a statement at
the meeting of the Audit & Scrutiny Committee where their petition is
being considered. It would be normal practice to allow the principal
petitioner or a deputy to speak, but this is at the discretion of the
Chairman of the Committee.

11.

No deputation to the Meeting of the Audit & Scrutiny Committee shall
exceed 10 in number and, at the discretion of the Chairman, only one
speaker shall be heard by the Committee. The time allowed to present the
petition shall not exceed 10 minutes, except at the discretion of the
Chairman. The speaker should also be prepared to answer questions.

Page 4

2

12.

Notice of petitions scheduled to be considered by the Audit & Scrutiny
Committee will be through the usual on-line public access facility to
committee papers, with a link from the petitions “page” on the Council
website. Those signing petitions should be made aware that the detail of
the petition, with their name and address (but not signature), will be
published on the Council website as part of the agenda pack for the
meeting of the Audit & Scrutiny Committee.

13.

For the moment, no “e-petitions” will be facilitated, or comments from the
public accepted on petitions scheduled for consideration by the Audit &
Scrutiny Committee.

14.

The procedure at the meeting, for each petition considered, shall be as
follows:
(i)

the meeting shall be in public unless the subject matter of the petition
would be deemed to be confidential under the terms of Section 7A of
the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973;

(ii) the principal petitioner, or named deputy, shall give a statement in
explanation of the petition;
(iii) there will be an opportunity for Members of the Committee to ask
questions of the petitioner or their named deputy;
(iv) there will be an opportunity for any Director(s), Executive Member(s)
and Community Planning Partner representative(s) present to ask
questions of the petitioner or their named deputy;
(v) a response to the petition may be heard from a Director, Executive
Member and/or Community Planning Partner representative present
at the meeting;
(vi) there will be an opportunity for Members of the Committee to ask
questions of any Director, Executive Member(s) and Community
Planning Partner representative(s) present at the meeting;
(vii) there will be an opportunity for the petitioner or their named deputy
to ask questions of any Elected Member, Director or Community
Planning Partner representative present at the meeting;
(viii) Members of the Committee shall then discuss the information
available and consider their findings. The Committee may defer a
decision should further information be required.
Note: any contribution on behalf of the petition from a second or other
speaker(s) shall be at the discretion of the Chairman. The public will not
be allowed to speak at the meeting unless invited to do so by the
Chairman.
15.

The Audit & Scrutiny Committee shall agree to one of the following:-

Page 5

3

(i)

refer the petition to another Committee or Director, with or without a
recommendation or comment. That Committee or Director shall then
make the final decision which could include taking no further action;

(ii) refer the petition to the relevant Community Planning Partner, with or
without a recommendation or comment, if appropriate;
(iii) that the issue(s) raised do not merit or do not require further action.
16.

The decision of the Audit & Scrutiny Committee, and any reason for that
decision, shall be recorded in the Minute of the Meeting and a copy of the
Minute shall be sent to the principal petitioner by Democratic Services
staff. Where the petition is referred to a Director or another body, the
responsibility for communicating the final outcome of the petition is also
referred. Updates on these outcomes will be provided to the Audit &
Scrutiny Committee.

17.

There will be no right of appeal in response to a final decision made in
response to a petition.

18.

The usage and effectiveness of the petitions procedure shall be reviewed
on an annual basis.

Page 6

4

Agenda Item 4b

Page 7

Page 8

Page 9

Page 10

Page 11

Page 12

Page 13

Page 14

Page 15

Page 16

Page 17

Page 18

Page 19

Langlee Drive Petition
Agenda Item 4c

Philippa Gilhooly, CILT
Team Leader, Traffic and Road Safety
Scottish Borders Council
April 2019

Petitions Committee Request

Page 20

Existing Traffic Calming Features and Initiatives
Langlee Galashiels

Page 21

• Junction of Langlee Rd/Langlee
Dr/Talisman Ave – radius of footways
extended to improve the crossing of
the junction & slow vehicles
• Echelon Parking
• Twenty’s Plenty
• Stop, look and listen crossing mats
• School sign and plate (diagram 545)
• School keep clear zig zags DYL
• Flat top speed hump with build-out

• Part-time 20 limit Melrose Road
• School Crossing Patrol on Melrose Road
• Light controlled crossing Melrose Road
• New multi-coloured fencing
• Walk to School Weeks
• Pedometer challenge
• Walk once a Week – 5 week walking
initiative
• Educational inputs – local road safety
officer & Police LIO

Page 22

Survey Location

Page 23

Page 24

Page 25

Average Speeds 5/7days

Page 26

5 and 7 Day Average Vehicle Volumes and
Speeds

Page 27

Daily Volume Counts 15 mins

Page 28

Traffic Flows over Study Period

Page 29

Page 30

Observations

Page 31

• Both surveys show general compliance with advisory 20s Plenty and
low average and 85%ile speeds which are welcomed
• Large scale traffic calming using speed humps limited to Burnfoot,
Bannerfield and Balmoral constructed more than 15 years ago.
• Smaller scale use at Glendinning, Eyemouth and Selkirk HS.
• Individual flat topped speed humps to aid crossing at: Langlee, Stow,
Edenside, Chirnside, West Linton, Jed Grammar and Tweedbank.
• Proposal for new flat topped speed hump and build out at revised
crossing point.
• Zero reported injury accidents on record (2003)

Proposal: Flat Topped Speed Hump with Build
Out

Page 32

Agenda Item 9
SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTE of Meeting of the AUDIT AND
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE held in Council
Chamber, Council Headquarters, Newtown
St Boswells on Monday, 11 March 2019 at
10.00 am

Present:Apologies:Also Present:In Attendance:-

1.

Councillors S Bell, (Chairman), H. Anderson, K. Chapman, J. Fullarton, N.
Richards, S. Scott, E. Thornton-Nicol.
Mr M Middlemiss (from para 3) and Ms H Barnett (from para 2)
Councillors S. Hamilton, H. Scott.
Councillors C. Hamilton, S. Haslam.
Chief Officer Education, Clerk to the Council, C. Irvine (Lead Petitioner), J.
Currie (Petitioner) (para 2); Chief Officer Audit and Risk, Chief Financial
Officer, Ms G Woolman, and Mr G Samson – Audit Scotland (from para 3),
Principal Internal Auditor, Trainee Democratic Services Officer.

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS
The Chairman welcomed those present to the meeting and introductions were made.
SCRUTINY BUSINESS

2.
2.1

NURSERY PLACE DISCRIMINATION IN PEEBLES 2019 PETITION
There had been circulated copies of an extract from the Audit and Scrutiny Committee
Petitions procedure. The Clerk to the Council explained the Petitions Procedure to be
followed and highlighted the main points. The Chairman then welcomed Christine Irvine,
Lead Petitioner, who was in attendance to present a petition on Nursery Place
Discrimination in Peebles and who was accompanied by Judith Currie. Ms Irvine
commenced her presentation by explaining further the information in the supporting
statement. The petitions submission form had been submitted along with a link to the online Petition. Ms Irvine went on to explain that the decision by Scottish Borders Council to
roll out increased provision of nursery hours by catchment area was discriminatory. As of
August 2019, children entering placements in Peebles were facing postcode lottery as to
whether they would be able to access the additional funded allocation of 600 hours or
1140 hours. Scottish Borders Council had been asked to roll out the extended hours to
those children whose families lived in ‘more deprived’ areas. The few streets of more
deprived families were included but so too were some of the most affluent streets,
rendering the target deprived areas first directive as meaningless. Ms Irvine reported that
in a small community such as Peebles, the roll out would have been fairer to offer all
nursery children a partial increase in 2019 rather than a full increase to 1140 hours based
on catchment area. The current increase meant that some children were losing out on
one extra year of education and given the proven benefits to children, it was unacceptable
to deny the rest of the children in Peebles this opportunity. Ms Irvine went on to explain
that the figures from the Scottish Index Multiple Deprivation from 2014 had not taken into
account all the new developments within Peebles, so was not a robust enough measure.
A provision should also be in for all eligible 2 year olds to receive this provision and to
target the children in need of it most. The main point raised for concern was that Peebles
had been split into two from the north and south side of the town. A point was also raised
that Kingsmeadows Nursery on the south side of the town may already be fully
subscribed. The Chairman summarised the main points of the petitioners: the allocation

Page 33

had been unfair; concern over the nursery provision filling up; this was not just about
Priorsford but the availability of private provision; and concern that the use of 2014 SIMD
as a measure of deprivation. Members asked various questions of the petitioners to gain
clarification on the catchment area, the availability and cost of the nursery provision at the
moment and in future, the division of the town, and to establish an understanding on what
could have been done better.
2.2

There had been circulated copies of a briefing note by the Chief Officer for Education
responding to the Petition who reported that currently all 3 and 4 year old children (and
eligible 2 year olds) were entitled to 600 hours Early Learning and Childcare (ELC) a year,
depending on their birth date. This entitlement would not change until August 2020. In
2020, the entitlement would then change to 1140 hours which would equate to an
additional full day during term time. From now until then, the Council would phase the
expanded hours as had been tasked to do by Scottish Government. In Scottish Borders,
a priority list was created, based on the Child Poverty Index, as set out by Scottish
Government in ‘A Blueprint for 2020: The Expansion of Early Learning and Childcare in
Scotland’, in which Local Authorities were to determine the most appropriate way to phase
the expanded hours, to reflect the Scottish Index of Multiple Deprivation (SIMD): using
thorough and robust data, which sets out the order of phasing for all catchment
communities. Ms Strong reported that it would not have been feasible or appropriate to
take this analysis to a more detailed level where individual families could have been
identified and that the priority list was created using strong local data. This approach was
approved by the Council’s Executive Committee on 7 November 2017 and the report
recognised phasing would cause concerns. Consideration had been given to a partial
increase for all children to 900 hours and then on to 1140 hours but this was strongly
discouraged by the National Improvement Service as it would not allow Local Authorities
to benefit from, or learn from the experiences of the full expansion, nor did it satisfy the
Scottish Government requirement to reflect the SIMD index in phasing in the expansion.
The programme of expansion was agreed by full Council on 31 May 2018. The report set
out the number of catchment communities phasing each year and was linked to the
phasing of funding from the Scottish Government. It provided the opportunity for Local
Authorities and providers to embed new ways of working, to establish the needs of
families and to ensure that the ELC services in the Scottish Borders provided all children
with the best possible experiences regardless of the number of hours they were
accessing. As agreed by Council, only children who lived in the phasing catchments were
able to access the expanded hours until the increased hours were fully rolled out. This
meant that in each setting there may be children who accessed expanded hours and
children who continued to access their current entitlement of 600 hours. Ms Strong stated
that Scottish Government provided documentation on how this would be rolled out and
that it was to be on a phased entitlement per area. Scottish Borders Council created a
priority list based on the Child Poverty Index which set up the ordering of the phasing for
all catchment areas. It was noted that all 32 local authorities were also phasing and were
experiencing similar concerns.

2.3

In response to the Petitioners’ concerns, Ms Strong thanked them for the opportunity to
discuss matters. It had never been the intention to offend and she aimed to clarify the
approach taken. The actual entitlement to 1140 hours did not change until 2020, so
there was no entitlement at present. Scottish Government had provided a number of
documents which could be used to roll out the provision and it was for local authorities to
use SIMD or alternative data to roll out provision. In the Scottish Borders, a priority list
had been created based on the Child Poverty Index, and this set out the phasing of
provision. This Index looked at measures relevant for families living in the Scottish
Borders based on the up to date information received from data from HMRC, the
percentage of children in receipt of free schools meals, clothing allowance and the
educational maintenance allowance. With regard to the concerns raised in relation to the
provision available by 2020, Ms Strong advised that it was recognised that phasing meant
some could access increased hours sooner than others. This was the same for other
local authorities. A partial increase in hours across the area had been investigated but

Page 34

this had not been taken forward as it would have meant one change followed by a second
change which would have impacted greatly on resources. There was a massive job
ahead in terms of the full roll out of the entitled hours by 2020 which was a complex piece
of work, taking account of staffing, buildings, and curriculum. In terms of year on year
provision, it was explained that there were enough places for children in Peebles; no
ceiling was put on funded places and Kingsmeadow private nursery had not contacted the
Council to advise that demand was outstripping supply. The Child Poverty Index data had
been available on the Council’s website since March 2017 and the phasing plan
programme submitted to Scottish Government was circulated. In response to a question
about phasing Priorsford earlier than planned, Ms Strong advised that it was necessary to
work within available resources (staff and buildings) and also to be fair across all of the
Borders. If it was possible to bring forward Priorsford, this would mean provision
elsewhere would likely be negatively impacted. The Clerk to the Council then advised the
Committee members of their options in response to the petition: to refer the petition to
another Committee or Director for final decision; to refer the petition to a relevant
Community Planning Partner; or that the issue(s) raised did not merit or did not require
further action.
2.4

Members of the Committee discussed the information which had been provided at the
meeting and made reference to the financial and other constraints on the Council. Similar
issues were raised in terms of broadband provision, public transport and rurality which
caused inequalities for communities. Members also discussed whether any “eligible twos”
could be included earlier in the provision for 1140 hours across the Council area.
VOTE
Councillor Scott, seconded by Councillor Fullarton, moved that the Petitioners be thanked
for bringing forward the petition, acknowledged their concerns but that no further action be
taken.
Councillor Anderson, seconded by Councillor Chapman, moved as an amendment that a
report be prepared - in terms of costs, workforce and property availability - for the
Executive Committee to consider accelerating the provision of 1140 hours to all “eligible
twos” across the region in 2019/20.
On a show of hands, Members voted as follows:Motion
Amendment

- 3 votes
- 4 votes

DECISION
DECIDED to refer the matter to the Executive Committee and that officers prepare a
report - in terms of costs, workforce and property availability – for consideration to
accelerate the provision of 1140 hours of nursery provision to all eligible two year
olds across the region in 2019/20.
2.5

The Chairman clarified the main points raised and thanked the petitioners and officers for
their attendance and the comprehensive, clear reports that were provided to the
Committee.
AUDIT & SCRUTINY BUSINESS

3.

MINUTE.
There had been circulated copies of the Minute of the Audit & Scrutiny Committee held on
14 February 2019.
DECISION
APPROVED for signature by the Chairman.

Page 35

4.

ACTION TRACKER
With reference to paragraph 3 of the Minute of 14 February 2019, there had been
circulated copies of the Action Tracker for the Audit and Scrutiny Committee. It was noted
that the Property Assurance report, in connection with issues raised within National
Performance Reports by Audit Scotland had been deferred due to further information
required. With regard to the progress made on the Cove Car Park Petition, the Chairman
had been advised by the Networks Manager that good progress had been made since 1
November 2018. It was reported that the order for the introduction of the new TRO
restriction on vehicle size to under 3.5 tonnes and the time limit for 48 hours parking came
into operation on 21 January 2019. The proposed review of speed limits, aimed at
reducing the speed limit on the Cove road to 30mph, was due to be considered. The
signage “Unsuitable for HGV/buses and “No Through Road” had been manufactured in
February 2019 and would be erected. A further review found that the current layout was
optimum in terms of the provision of spaces. The creation of a formal turning circle within
the car park for larger vehicles would result in the loss of several spaces. It had been
confirmed by the Estates Section that the car park was owned by the Council. With
regard to the erection of a “Slow Pedestrian” sign, this was currently under consideration
as part of the ongoing survey. It was agreed, in the interim, that the existing informal
signing of resident’s spaces would remain. Network staff would undertake ad hoc surveys
of the car park and the access road which had shown no issues with car park occupancy
and no pedestrian use of the route. However, they would continue to observe the Spring
and Summer usage. Ms Stacey advised that following today’s meeting any items marked
as completed would be removed from the action tracker.
DECISION
NOTED the:(a)

Action Tracker; and

(b)

progress made with the Cove Car Park recommendations
AUDIT BUSINESS

5.

MINUTE
There had been circulated copies of the Special Audit & Scrutiny Minute of 26 February
2019.
DECISION
APPROVED for signature by the Chairman.

6.
6.1

INTERNAL AUDIT WORK TO FEBRUARY 2019
With reference to paragraph 3 of the Minute of 14 February 2019, there had been
circulated copies of a report by the Chief Officer Audit and Risk which provided details of
the recent work carried out by Internal Audit and the recommended audit actions agreed
by Management to improve internal controls and governance arrangements. The work
Internal Audit had carried out during the period 15 December 2018 to 22 February 2019
was detailed in the report. During the period a total of six Final Internal Audit reports had
been issued. There had been one recommendation made which related to one of the
reports which had been accepted by Management for implementation. An Executive
Summary of the final Internal Audit reports issued, included audit objective, findings, good
practice, recommendations (where appropriate) and the Chief Officer Audit and Risk’s
independent and objective opinion on the adequacy of the control environment and
governance arrangements within each audit area, was shown in Appendix 1 to the report.
The SBC Internal Audit function conformed to the professional standards as set out in
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) (2017) including the production of this
report to communicate the results of the reviews.

Page 36

6.2

Ms Stacey highlighted some aspects of the Internal Audit Assurance Work In Progress:
the programme of work showed that the Winter Service timescale, as part of the
transformation programme, had moved and had been built into the audit plan 2019/20;
and the engagement in the design, development and delivery of the Contract
Management Framework by the Contract Management Working Group, incorporating the
ICT Contract, would be launched in 2019 and a report would be produced in 2019/20.
Reference was made by Ms Stacey to each of the Internal Audit Final Assurance Reports
detailed in the Appendix to the report: Capital Investment; Financial Planning; Private
Sector Landlord Registration; Adult Social Care Self-Directed Support; Protective
Services; and Information Governance. In response to a question on how SBC compared
to other Councils with regard to workforce issues raised, Ms Stacey stated that the issues
were amplified in rural areas and Protective Services Management were liaising with other
Councils and national bodies to consider actions to address the challenges which would
continue to be recorded through the people planning process. Mr Robertson advised that
the financial planning process 2019/20 lessons learned results would be reviewed by
Corporate Management Team and would be brought back to this Committee for review.
In response to a concern about lack of progress with implementing some audit
recommendations by Management, and after a full discussion on the Internal Audit followup process, Members requested a further recommendation be added to reflect the
discussion on the escalation process of overdue audit recommendations to Corporate
Management Team. The Chief Financial Officer stated that this recommendation would be
highlighted to Corporate Management Team.
DECISION:
(a)
NOTED:-

(b)

7.

(i)

the final assurance reports issued in the period from 15 December 2018
to 22 February 2019 associated with the delivery of the approved
Internal Audit Annual Plan 2018/19; and

(ii)

the Internal Audit consultancy and other work undertaken in this
period.

AGREED:(i)

to acknowledge the assurance provided on internal controls and
governance arrangements in place for the areas covered by this
Internal Audit work;

(ii)

that the financial planning 2019/20 lessons learned results would be
brought back to this Committee following the review by Corporate
Management Team; and

(iii)

that as part of the Internal Audit follow-up process any deviation from
agreed timescales of actions be escalated as appropriate to Corporate
Management Team.

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN FOR 2018/19
There had been circulated copies of overview report by Audit Scotland for the year ended
31 March 2019 providing an overview of the planned scope and timing of the external
audit of Scottish Borders Council which was carried out in accordance with the
International Standards on Auditing Code of Audit Practice and other relevant guidance.
The Plan identified Audit Scotland’s work to provide an opinion on the financial statements
and related matters and met the wider scope requirements of public sector audit, including
the new approach to Best Value. The wider scope of public audit contributed to
conclusions on the appropriateness, effectiveness and impact of corporate governance,
performance management arrangements and financial sustainability. Ms Woolman, Audit
Scotland explained that a number of risks to the Council had been identified and that

Page 37

these had been categorised into either financial or wider dimension risks along with the
planned audit work for each and were detailed in the report. Ms Woolman went on to
summarise the 2018/19 audit outputs, materiality values and referred to the financial
statements timetable which took account of submission requirements and planned Audit
and Scrutiny Committee dates. Ms Woolman advised that the review of Internal Audit had
concluded that the Internal Audit function operated in accordance with the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards and had sound documentation standards and reporting
procedures in place. Ms Woolman highlighted that their planned work for Scottish
Borders Council this year would focus on the Council’s arrangements for demonstrating
Best Value in vision and leadership, partnership and collaborative working, progress with
its transformation programme, performance, outcomes and procurement. The results of
this would be reported in the Annual Audit Report. Ms Woolman answered a question on
clarification of materiality, explaining that the concept of materiality in planning and
performing was applied and the calculation of materiality values for Scottish Borders
Council were detailed in Exhibit 3 to the report. The Chairman thanked Ms Woolman for
the input from and advice given on behalf of Audit Scotland.
DECISION
NOTED the report.
8.

SCOTTISH BORDERS PENSION FUND EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN FOR 2018/19
There had been circulated copies of a report by Audit Scotland providing an overview of
the planned scope and timing of the external audit of Scottish Borders Pension Fund
which was carried out in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing Code of
Audit Practice and other relevant guidance. The Plan identified Audit Scotland’s work to
provide an opinion on the financial statements and related matters and met the wider
scope requirements of public sector audit. The wider scope of public audit contributed to
conclusions on the appropriateness, effectiveness and impact of corporate governance,
performance management arrangements and financial sustainability. Ms Woolman
explained that a number of risks to the Scottish Borders Pension Fund had been identified
and that these had been categorised into either financial or wider dimension risks along
with the planned audit work for each and were detailed in the report. Ms Woolman went
on to summarise the 2018/19 audit outputs and advised that the Audit Scotland fee for
2018/19 in relation to the Scottish Borders Pension Fund was £20,580 whilst noting that a
supplementary fee could be added as detailed in paragraph 8 of the report. Materiality
values and a financial statements timetable were detailed in the report, which took
account of Audit and Scrutiny Committee dates. Mr Robertson responded to a question
relating to the Pension Fund and advised that the asset allocation strategy is a maturing
fund and investments were increasing to pay pensions and performance would be under
regular review by the Committee. The Chairman thanked Ms Woolman for the input from
and advice given on behalf of Audit Scotland.
DECISION
NOTED the report.

9.

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER
With reference to paragraph 7 of the Minute of 19 March 2018, there had been circulated
copies of a report by the Chief Officer Audit and Risk providing the Committee with the
updated Internal Audit Charter for approval. The Charter defined the terms of reference
for the Internal Audit function to carry out its role to enable the Chief Officer Audit and Risk
to prepare an annual internal audit opinion on the adequacy of the Council’s overall
control environment. The definition of Internal Auditing within the Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards (PSIAS) was “Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance
and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It
helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and
governance processes”. In accordance with the PSIAS, the purpose, authority and
responsibility of the Internal Audit activity must be formally defined in an Internal Audit

Page 38

Charter, consistent with the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the
Standards. The Chief Officer Audit and Risk, as the Chief Audit Executive at Scottish
Borders Council, must periodically review the Internal Audit Charter and present it to
senior management (Corporate Management Team) and the board (Audit and Scrutiny
Committee) for approval. The Internal Audit Charter was shown in Appendix 1 to the
report and had been updated by the Chief Officer Audit and Risk in conformance with the
PSIAS for approval by the Audit and Scrutiny Committee to ensure that Internal Audit was
tasked to carry out its role in accordance with best Corporate Governance practice. Ms
Stacey advised that the Internal Audit Charter had been updated to explicitly emphasise
the application of the Code of Ethics to fulfil a quality improvement action which had
arisen from the internal self-assessment 2018/19. In response to questions, Ms Stacey
advised that Internal Audit had access to all records (both paper and electronic) of the
Council, Pension Fund, SB Cares and Integration Joint Board (IJB) to comply with the
audit standards. Monthly meetings were also held with the Chief Financial Officer to
discuss any relevant matters.
DECISION
AGREED the updated Internal Audit Charter as shown in Appendix 1 to the report
attached to the agenda.
10.
10.1

INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY AND INTERNAL ANNUAL PLAN 2019/20
With reference to paragraph 8 of the Minute of 19 March 2018, there had been circulated
a report by the Chief Officer Audit and Risk seeking approval to the proposed Internal
Audit Strategy and Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 to enable the preparation of the annual
opinions on the adequacy of the overall control environment for Scottish Borders Council,
SB Cares, Scottish Borders Pension Fund, and Scottish Borders Health and Social Care
Integration Joint Board. Ms Stacey explained that the Internal Audit function followed the
professional standards as set out in Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)
effective 1 April 2013 (updated 2017) which required the establishment of risk based
plans to determine the priorities of the Internal Audit activity and that these plans were
sufficiently flexible to reflect the changing risks and priorities pertaining to each
organisation. The Internal Audit function also included the requirement to provide senior
management and members with independent and objective assurance which was
designed to add value and improve the organisation’s operation. In addition, the Chief
Officer Audit and Risk was also required to prepare an Internal Audit annual opinion on
the adequacy of the organisation’s overall control environment. The background to the
Internal Audit Strategy was set out in Appendix 1 to the report. Ms Stacey explained that
the Internal Audit Annual Plan 2019/20, detailed in Appendix 2, set out the range and
breadth of audit areas and sufficient work within the audit programme of work to enable
the Chief Officer Audit and Risk to prepare an Internal Audit annual opinion. Key
components of the audit planning process included a clear understanding of the
organisation’s functions, associated risks, and assurance framework. There were staff
and other resources currently in place to achieve the Internal Audit Annual Plan 2019/20
and to meet its objectives.

10.2

The Committee discussed the report and Ms Stacey advised that there had not been
significant changes in terms of the Internal Audit Strategy with the compliance of the code
of ethics being more explicit and confirmed that the proposed coverage in the Internal
Audit Annual Plan would enable assurance to be provided to the Committee and
Corporate Management Team though the plan should be considered to be flexible and will
be periodically reviewed, and amended as required, to reflect any new arrangements or
changing risks and priorities. In response to a question on any changes from previous
years on consultancy work, Ms Stacey advised that Internal Audit has increasingly been
involved as a ‘critical friend’ in various change and transformation projects on request by
members of Corporate Management Team whilst maintaining clarity on the statutory role
of Internal Audit to fulfil its provision of independent and objective assurance as has been
reflected in the Internal Audit Strategy.

Page 39

DECISION
AGREED:(a)

the Internal Audit Strategy as detailed in Appendix 1 to the report; and

(b)

the Internal Audit Annual Plan 2019/20 detailed in Appendix 2 to the report.

MEMBER
Ms Barnett left the meeting during consideration of the above item
The meeting concluded at 1.00 pm

Page 40

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
ACTION SHEET MASTER COPY
AUDIT &SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 2018/19
Notes:1.
Paragraphs Marked with a * require full Council approval before action can be taken
2.
Items for which no actions are required are not included
TITLE
25 June 2018
National
Performance
Reports by Audit
Scotland

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

STATUS

AGREED the proposed schedule for presentation of the
National Performance Reports by Audit Scotland.

Assets &
Infrastructure

Service Director
Assets and
Infrastructure

At the Audit and Scrutiny
Committee on 11 March
2019 it was noted that the
Property Assurance
report, in connection with
issues raised within
National Performance
Reports by Audit
Scotland, had been
deferred due to further
information required.

23 August 2018
Delivery of the IT
Strategy and Plan
within Scottish
Borders

AGREED that Members would check the private report on
the ICT Review which had been considered by Council in
March 2016 and send any questions to the Chief Financial
Officer and Service Director Customer and Communities in
advance of another meeting of Audit and Scrutiny to
consider the delivery of the Council’s IT Strategy and Plan.

n/a

Members

Added to Scrutiny Work
Programme for
presentation to 18 April
2019

1 November 2018
Cove Car Park
Petition

Service Director
Asset &
Infrastructure

The progress made with
the Cove Car Park
recommendations was
noted at the Audit and
Scrutiny Committee on 11
March 2019 – update
given via Chairman

AGREED to refer the issues raised by the Cove Car Park
Asset and
petition to the Service Director Assets & Infrastructure to
Infrastructure
carry out the following work:
(a) Introduce the new TRO proposing a restriction on
vehicle size to under 3.5 tonnes and a time limit for
parking of 48 hours;
(b) include the Cove road in the proposed review of speed
limits due to start in Summer 2019, with the aim of
reducing the speed limit on the road to 30mph;

Agenda Item 10

DIRECTORATE/
SECTION

Page 41

DECISION REQUIRING ACTION

(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)

14 February 2019
Treasury
Management
Strategy 2019/20

ensure the signage “Unsuitable for HGV/buses” and
“No Through Road” be erected as soon as possible;
review the current layout of the car parking spaces to
ascertain if further spaces could be made, including a
turning area for large vehicles e.g. the refuse lorry;
consider erecting a “Slow pedestrians” sign;
seek clarification on the ownership of the car park;
and
consider options for permitted parking for residents,
liaising with Mr Payne and Cove residents on the way
forward.
Finance

Chief Financial
Officer

To request a further briefing session on managing
information.

Regulatory
Services

Service Director
Regulatory
Services

The Pensions and
Investments Manager is
liaising with the Council’s
Treasury Management
Adviser to arrange a date;
provisionally 25
November 2019 at
Informal Session prior to
considering the Mid-Term
Treasury Management
Performance Report
2019/20 in formal
business.
To be added to
programme of Members
briefings.

DECIDED to refer the matter to the Executive Committee
and that officers prepare a report - in terms of costs,
workforce and property availability – for consideration to
accelerate the provision of 1140 hours of nursery provision
to all eligible two year olds across the region in 2019/20.

C&YP

Chief Officer for
Education

Report to be prepared for
Executive Committee

Page 42

Members also requested a further treasury management
training session prior to the September meeting, Ms Stacey
and Mr Robertson would liaise regarding outwith the
meeting.

Risk Management
in Services –
Regulatory
Services
11 March 2019
Nursery Place
Discrimination in
Peebles 2019
Petition

